<u>City of Portsmouth, New Hampshire</u> <u>REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS #58-14</u>

Construction Services

for the

African Burying Ground Memorial Park

INVITATION

The City of Portsmouth, New Hampshire ("Owner") seeks Statements of Qualifications for construction services for the creation of the African Burying Ground Memorial Park on Chestnut Street between Court and State Streets in Portsmouth, NH. Sealed Statements of Qualifications, plainly marked RFQ 58-14, "Construction Services for the African Burying Ground Memorial Park" on the outside of the mailing envelope, addressed to the Finance/Purchasing Department, City Hall, 1 Junkins Avenue, Portsmouth, NH 03801 will be accepted until **2:00 p.m. on Monday, March 24, 2014.** An informational session about the Request for Qualifications for general contractors and sub-contractors on March 14, 2014 at 10:00 a.m. in the School Board Conference Room at Portsmouth City Hall, 1 Junkins Avenue.

The Project Work will include pre-construction and construction services necessary to complete the African Burying Ground Memorial Park. This work includes the creation of a Memorial over a burying ground that was in use as early as 1705 and, over time, was paved over, built over and forgotten. It is now known to be the burying site of as many as two-hundred African and African descended individuals, likely both enslaved and free who lived in Portsmouth from its earliest days. Previously exhumed remains will be reinterred in a custom vault as part of the project work. The work will include partial demolition and sitework; extensive masonry and detailed stonework; installation of outdoor sculptural components and related memorial components; and associated roadway, drainage, electrical, and landscaping work. The Contractor will be responsible for overall administration, coordination and construction of the project and will work closely with the City, the City's Construction Clerk, the City's consulting Archaeologist, the State Archaeologist, the City's Landscape Architect Roberta Woodburn and project sculptor and artist Jerome Meadows. The estimated construction cost is \$1.2 million. Over 80% of project funds have been raised, and the remainder is anticipated to be raised concurrent with pre-construction work under this contract. Work is funded with a combination of private donations from individuals and families as well as governmental and foundation grants, including federal grants. The project is fully-permitted.

Qualification packages may be obtained from the City's web site at <u>www.cityofportsmouth.com</u>, Questions may be addressed to the Purchasing Coordinator by calling 603-610-7227. Addenda to this document, if any, will be posted on the City of Portsmouth website under the project heading.

The City of Portsmouth reserves the right to reject any or all statements of qualifications, to waive technical or legal deficiencies, to proceed or not to proceed with any subsequent proposal process, or to negotiate without further process any contract as may be in the best interest of the City.

REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS #58-14

Construction Services

for the

African Burying Ground Memorial Park QUALIFICATIONS STATEMENT

Table of Contents:

- Part 1 Introduction
- Part 2 Statement of Qualifications
 - 2.1 General Information
 - 2.2 Threshold Requirements
 - 2.3 Organization History
 - 2.4 Disputes and Legal
 - 2.5 Bonding, Insurance and Safety
 - 2.6 Financial Information
 - 2.7 Personnel, Suppliers and Related Experience
 - 2.8 References
- Part 3 Identification of Project Sub-Contractors
- Part 4 African Burying Ground Memorial Park Project Area and Colorized Site Plan
- Part 5 Construction Plan Set



PART 1 – INTRODUCTION

General Contractor Selection Process

The City of Portsmouth, New Hampshire ("Owner") seeks Statements of Qualifications for construction services for the creation of the African Burying Ground Memorial Park to be constructed on Chestnut Street between Court and State Streets in Portsmouth, NH.

The selection of a General Contractor for this Project Work will take place in two stages. Stage one will include the review and selection of up to five firms who submit completed responses to this RFQ. Those selected firms will be deemed qualified and invited to submit proposals for the Project Work as part of Stage Two. Additional information pertaining to selection process, including criteria and other information can be found in Part 2 and in the proposal documents that will be issued to qualified Contractors.

Project Background and Purpose

The Project Work will include pre-construction and construction services necessary to construct the African Burying Ground Memorial Park. Some previously exhumed remains will be reinterred in a custom vault as part of the Project Work. The work will include site preparation and work; extensive masonry and detailed stonework; installation of outdoor sculptural components and related memorial components; associated roadway, sidewalk and drainage improvements as well as electrical and landscaping components.

In 2003, a series of coffins were revealed during infrastructure upgrades in the heart of downtown Portsmouth. Through archaeology and DNA analysis the City confirmed the site was at one time a segregated burying place for Africans and their descendents (likely both enslaved and free) and that as many as 200 individuals are buried below. Their names are unknown. The site was in use from the early 1700s through to the 19th century during which time it was paved over, built over and forgotten.

The Portsmouth community, including members of the African-American community, the City Council and the African Burying Ground Committee chose to close this public street to through traffic and honor those buried there by transforming this downtown City block into a public place of reverence, reflection, and learning. Working with two nationally recognized and accomplished design professionals, the community created a vision for memorializing the site: the African Burying Ground Memorial Park, *We Stand in Honor of Those Forgotten*. A multi-year, grassroots, volunteer led effort to raise the needed funds to implement the community's goal is nearly complete.

This project has attracted support, interest, artistic and academic inquiry, and funding from throughout New England and the United States. This site is the only archaeologically-authenticated Colonial era African burial site in all of northern New England and, on a smaller scale, is comparable to the African Burying Ground and National Monument in lower Manhattan.



Additional background materials can be found on the website for the African Burying Ground Memorial Park: www.africanburyinggroundnh.org.

Special Construction and Site Sensitivity

The General Contractor selected for this project will be responsible for providing preconstruction services and ensuring the project is constructed according to plans and specifications. This work will be coordinated by the General Contractor in close coordination with the City of Portsmouth, the City's Construction Clerk, the City's consulting Archaeologist, the State Archaeologist, Landscape Architect Roberta Woodburn, and project sculptor and artist Jerome Meadows. The estimated construction cost is \$1.2 million. Over 80% of project funds have been raised, and the remainder is anticipated to be raised concurrent with pre-construction work under this contract. Construction will be dependent upon the availability of funds. Work is funded with a combination of private donations from individuals and families as well as governmental and foundation grants, including federal grants. The project is fully-permitted.

The Project Work will take place over an early 18th century burying place. Appropriate sensitivity to the historical, cultural and social significance of this site will be required of all project contractors and partners through the Project Work. In recognition of the site's importance and the multiple burials that have been previously identified and others that documentary evidence and other scholarship has indicated are present, specific design parameters were established by the State Archaeologist and used in the creation of the Construction Drawings and Specifications, which have been approved by the State Archaeologist in accordance with State Law. The Plan set is in compliance with these requirements. The project design and planned methods of construction ensure that no human remains will be disturbed as part of project construction per the direction of the State Archaeologist. In general, no excavation of the project site is permitted beyond the removal of existing asphalt surfacing, except in those areas clearly delineated on the plan that have been previously disturbed except in specific areas where hand digging will be permitted under the supervision of the City's Construction Clerk. Site protocols for digging and monitoring project work will be coordinated by the General Contractor and the City's Construction Clerk during preconstruction. The City of Portsmouth will retain a project Archeologist to provide hand digging and monitoring during excavation of critical areas; no project Archeologist will be needed for the General Contractors' teams.

The project Plans create a Memorial at the site in addition to the stabilization of an archaeological resource and historic burying ground. As a result, unique works of outdoor sculptural components have been included along with site furnishings and hardscape components that are critical to the unified design concept of the Memorial. This specialized masonry work is a critical component to project success as well as the successful implementation of other critical and custom memorial components. Critical granite and stonework includes the bluestone surfacing, granite seat and retaining walls, extensive curbing and associated tip-downs and the flush engraved granite band stretching through the site. Other critical elements include the decorative railing at the Court Street end, the below grade custom concrete burial vault, and drainage system installation for examples.

An important component to this Qualification Statement is the assembly of a team of subcontractors not only capable of insuring the successful completion of all Memorial components but who have the



attention to detail and sensitivity to see the project through in accordance with unique project requirements and constraints. General contractors or construction managers are encouraged to assemble teams; sub-contractors are able to be placed on more than one team.

Anticipated Schedule and Scope of Services

It is anticipated that project work will begin in calendar year 2014. A final construction schedule is yet to be determined. It is anticipated that the proposals will include the following additional services in addition to the proposal form for construction work itself.

- 1. Working with the Landscape Architect, Owner, and Owner's agents in the preconstruction phase to develop final plans; such efforts to include recommendations for construction details and potential cost saving opportunities.
- 2. Attending meetings with the Landscape Architect, Owner, Owner's agents as necessary, throughout the design and construction processes.
- 3. Maintaining and distributing minutes of all meetings with the Owner and Architect in a timely manner.
- 4. Coordinating with project owner on all funder requirements and record keeping as determined by project owner.

Selection Criteria

The following factors will be evaluated during the City's review of the Statements of Qualifications.

- 1. The Contractor's ability, capacity, efficiency, integrity, and skill to perform timely, quality work as reflected in the Contractor's Experience and References.
- 2. The Contractor's ability to manage complex projects in urban settings and to effectively manage subcontractors.
- 3. The Contractor's team of subcontractors and their ability, capacity, efficiency, integrity, and skill to perform timely, quality work as reflected in the Subcontractors' Experience and References section.
- 4. Sufficiency of Contractor's financial, equipment and personnel resources as represented in Contractor's Organization History.
- 5. Other information submitted in response to the factors outlined in the Qualification Statement.
- 6. Quality and completeness of Qualification submittal documentation.



PART 2 – STATEMENT OF QUALIFICATIONS

2.1 GENERAL INFORMATION

Date:		
Contractor Name:		
Contact Person:		
Contact Person E-mail:		
Street:	City:	
State: Zip: Telephone:	Fax:	

The selection of a General Contractor for this Project Work will take place in two stages. Stage one will include the review and selection of up to five firms who submit completed responses to this Qualification Statement. Those selected firms and their subcontractors will be deemed qualified and invited to submit proposals for the Project Work as part of Stage Two.

DUTY TO UPDATE AND SUPPLEMENT: Should any changes occur which substantially alters the data contained herein, the above named Contractor shall immediately submit to the City a revised Statement detailing the changes and the Contractor's current qualifications.

RESERVATION OF RIGHTS: The City of Portsmouth reserves the right not to proceed with proposals for the project. If the City bids the project, the City reserves the following additional rights:

- (1) to reject any and all proposals;
- (2) to reject any bid proposal where, in the opinion of the City, Contractor's circumstances have materially changed and such changes affect the qualifications or responsibility of the proposer;
- (3) to require additional Contractor qualifications in any bid documents;
- (4) to waive technical or legal deficiencies; and
- (5) to accept any bid that it may deem to be in the best interest of the City.
- (6) The City reserves the right to waive minor irregularities in the information contained in the qualification package submitted, to make all final determinations, and to determine if qualification will apply to future public works project. Firms not qualified for this project will not be allowed to submit bid proposals.



SUBMISSION OF QUALIFICATION STATEMENTS

Qualification statements must be submitted in sealed envelopes addressed to: Purchasing, City Hall, City of Portsmouth, 1 Junkins Avenue, Portsmouth, NH 03801. The words "QUALIFICATION STATEMENT – AFRICAN BURYING GROUND MEMORIAL PARK" must be clearly and legibly marked on the outside of the envelope.

The City will review the qualification statement within 30 days. Qualification statements will be reviewed by the Selection Committee. Qualified firms will be notified when the Proposal/Contract Documents for the project will be available.

SUBMISSION REQUIREMENTS

One original (1), unbound Qualifications Statement shall be submitted along with eight (8) bound copies. Respondents are encouraged to avoid the use of paper sizes other than 8.5" by 11" as well as the use of synthetic report covers and dividers. Please include all information in the order that it is requested in the RFQ.



2.1 GENERAL INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Description of Firm

Provide responses to each of the following questions, in a non-bound submittal. Do not exceed 8 pages.

- 1. Describe respondent's areas of specialization;
- 2. List internal resources (i.e. accounting, legal, survey, engineering, support staff);
- 3. Provide brief firm history;
- 4. List honors and awards;
- 5. Names of the principal officers of the firm;
- Key Professionals: Identify the key members of Respondent's team that would be involved in the project and describe their area of expertise and what role they will perform in the Construction Team. Include key sub-contractors in this section. Additional information will be required for each subcontractor in Part 3.
- 7. Describe Project Team proposed for the Project work, include construction work to be completed by firm and subcontractors proposed for each of the following work categories:
 - A. Masonry
 - B. Demolition and site work
 - C. Utilities
 - D. Landscaping
 - E. Paving
- 8. Resumes: Provide resumes of any person identified as a key professional.
- 9. Identify any work that Respondent anticipates being performed by the Respondent's own work forces.
- 10. Other information, qualifications and/or exceptions that the Respondent may consider appropriate to raise during the selection process.

2.2 THRESHOLD REQUIREMENTS OF QUALIFICATIONS

A. Contractor is registered with the Secretary of the State to do business in New Hampshire.



B. Contractor has a liability insurance policy with a policy limit of at least \$2,000,000 per occurrence and \$2,000,000 aggregate (or can provide for project). The limits may be met with an excess policy.





C. Contractor has current workers' compensation insurance policy as required by NH Administrative Rule RSA-281.A2.VIII.a or is legally self-insured pursuant to RSA-281.A2.IX (paragraph 1).

```
Yes No Contractor is exempt from this requirement, because it has no employees
```

- D. During review of the pre-qualification statement, the City reserves the right to request a financial statement from the contractor (audited, preferred, if available). In the event financial statements are requested and not provided, Contractor will be considered not meeting the threshold requirements and will be disqualified.
- E. Within the last five years, has a surety firm completed a contract on your behalf, or paid for completion because your firm was in default and terminated by the project owner?

Yes		No
-----	--	----

F. At any time during the last five years, has your firm, or any of its owners or officers been convicted of a crime involving the awarding of a contract for a construction project, or the bidding or performance of a construction contract?

Yes	No No
-----	-------



2.3 ORGANIZATION HISTORY

1. Contractor Name

2. Principal/Permanent Address _____

Local Address (if applicable)

3. How many years has Contractor been engaged in the contracting business under your present firm name?

4. List below each area/classification of construction (landscape, roadway, building, utilities) performed by your firm and include how many years of experience both as a general or sub-contractor:

5. a. If a corporation, answer this:

When incorporated	
In what State?	
President's name:	
Vice President's name:	
Secretary's or Clerk's name:	
Treasurer's name:	

- 5. b. If a partnership, answer this:
 - Date of organization:

Is partnership general or limited?



Name and	address	of Partners:
----------	---------	--------------

5.0.	If a Limited Liability Company, answer this: Date of Organization?
	Where Organized?
	Is the LLC member managed or manager managed?
	If member managed, identify the member? If manager managed, identify the manager:
	Name and title of Officers if any:
6.	Has there been any change in ownership of the firm at any time during the last three years?
	Yes No
	If yes, please explain in an attachment to be included with this submittal.
7.	Has your firm changed names in the past five years?
	Yes No
	If yes, please explain in an attachment to be included with this submittal.
8.	Is your firm currently the debtor in a bankruptcy case?
	Yes No
	If "yes," please attach a copy of the bankruptcy petition, showing the case number, and the date on which the petition was filed.
9.	Was your firm in bankruptcy at any time during the last five years?
	Yes No
10.	Has any owner, partner or (for corporations) officer of your firm operated a construction firm under any other name in the last five years?
	Yes No



If "yes," please attach a copy of the bankruptcy petition, showing the case number and the date on which the petition was filed, and a copy of the Bankruptcy Court's discharge order, or of any other document that ended the case, if no discharge order was issued.

2.4 DISPUTES AND LEGAL

11. At any time in the last five years has your firm been assessed and/or paid liquidated damages after completion of a project under a construction contract with either a public or private owner?



If yes, please explain in an attachment to be included with this submittal.

12. In the last five years has your firm been denied an award of a public works contract based on a finding by a public agency that your company was not a responsible bidder?

Yes	🗌 No
-----	------

If yes, please explain in an attachment to be included with this submittal.

- NOTE: The following two questions refer only to disputes between your firm and the owner of a project. You need not include information about disputes between your firm and a supplier, another contractor, or subcontractor. You need not include information about "pass-through" disputes in which the actual dispute is between a sub-contractor and a project owner. Also, you may omit reference to all disputes about amounts of less than \$25,000.
- 13. In the past five years has any claim against your firm concerning your firm's work on a construction project been filed in court or arbitration?
 - Yes No

If yes, please explain in an attachment to be included with this submittal.

14. In the past five years has your firm made any claim against a project owner concerning work on a project or payment for a contract and filed that claim in court or arbitration?



If yes, please explain in an attachment to be included with this submittal.

15. Has your firm or any of its owners, officers or partners ever been convicted of a crime involving any federal, state, or local law related to construction; or been debarred from performing work on any contract?

Yes		No
-----	--	----

If yes, please explain in an attachment to be included with this submittal.



16. In the past 5 years, has the Contractor ever failed to complete any work awarded to it in the scheduled contract time, including approved time extensions?

Yes	🗌 No
-----	------

If yes, please explain in an attachment to be included with this submittal.

- 17. Has Contractor or any officer, director, member, owner or partner of Contractor ever ceased work on a project?
 - Yes No

If yes, please explain in an attachment to be included with this submittal.

2.5 BONDING, INSURANCE AND SAFETY

18. Has any State (NH, ME, MA, VT) or Federal OSHA cited and assessed penalties against your firm for any "serious," "willful" or "repeat" violations of its safety or health regulations in the past five years?

NOTE: If you have filed an appeal of a citation, and the Occupational Safety and Health Appeals Board has not yet ruled on your appeal, you need not include information about it.

Yes No

If yes, please explain in an attachment to be included with this submittal.

- 19. During the last five years, has there been more than one occasion in which your own firm has been penalized or required to pay back wages for failure to comply with the federal Davis-Bacon prevailing wage requirements?
 - Yes No

If yes, please explain in an attachment to be included with this submittal.

2.6 FINANCIAL RECORDS AND INFORMATION

20. If requested by the City during review of the pre-qualification statement, the contractor shall submit their most recent audited or reviewed financial statements.



2.7 EQUIPMENT AND EXPERIENCE

- 21. List all municipal, State or Federal, and provide contracts your company has worked on in the past 3 years greater than \$200,000:
- 22. Please prepare two project data sheets for similar projects completed within the last 5 years:



Project Data Sheet #1

Project Name:		
Project Location:		
Date Completed:	Duration:	
Value of Contract at Completion:		Unit Price (y/n)
Funding sources:		
Owner Name:	Telephone:	
Address:		
Business Name and Address of entity	y which constructed and mar	naged this project:
Engineer:	_ Contact Name:	Phone:
Please note special project conditions that a	re similar in nature (Use additiona	l sheets if necessary):
Project Description:		
Describe landscaping, stonework, m	asonry or park work involv	ed:
Other (historic facilities, cemeteries	, memorial, archaeology, ar	nd/or urban conditions):



Project Data Sheet #2

Project Name:		
Project Location:		
Date Completed:	Duration:	
Value of Contract at Comple	etion:	Unit Price (y/n)
Funding sources:		
Owner Name:	Telephone	:
Address:		
Business Name and Address	of entity which constructed and	managed this project:
Engineer:	Contact Name:	Phone:
Please note special project condition	ons that are similar in nature (Use addi	tional sheets if necessary):
Project Description:		
Describe landscaping, stone	work, masonry or park:	
Other (historic facilities, cer	neteries, memorial, archaeolog	y, and/or urban conditions):



2.8 REFERENCES

23. Name, contact person, telephone number, and address of three (3) **<u>owners</u>** not employed by Contractor and involved in current contracts or contracts completed in the last five (5) years who can attest to the character, integrity, reputation, judgment, experience, and efficiency of the Contractor.

a.	
b.	
c.	

24. Name, contact person, telephone number, and address of three (3) **engineers** not employed by Contractor and involved in current contracts or contracts completed in the last five (5) years who can attest to the character, integrity, reputation, judgment, experience, and efficiency of the Contractor.

d.	
e.	
f.	

Nothing construed herein shall limit the City, or its authorized representatives, from contacting any and all former owners/clients, material suppliers and other third parties with knowledge of the Contractor's history of performance, practices and reputation. The existence of Release and Hold Harmless Statements directed to individual references as described above shall not be presumed to void or nullify the hold harmless language set forth in this document.

It is understood and agreed that all responses from references and others obtained by the City, or its authorized representatives, shall be deemed confidential. If a Contractor receives negative references and the City has preliminarily determined the Contractor not qualified based on such references, the City, or its authorized representatives, will provide Contractor with a summary of the nature of those negative references without identifying the party providing such reference.



CONTRACTOR'S PREQUALIFICATION STATEMENT

The undersigned, on behalf of the Contractor, certifies that the Contractor has not either directly or indirectly entered into any agreement, participated in any collusion, or otherwise taken any action in restraint of free competitive bidding in connection with any contract on any municipal, state, or federal project.

I swear that all the statements herein contained, including the declaration of ownership and organization, the financial information, current workload, and the record of experience have been examined by me, and to the best of my knowledge and belief are true and correct.

On behalf of Contractor, I hereby authorize the City of Portsmouth, or its authorized representatives, to make such investigation, inquiry, checks and tests as the City, in its sole discretion, deems necessary to attempt to ascertain Contractor's qualifications.

On behalf of Contractor, I hereby waive any and all claims, and release and hold harmless any person(s) who provides the City, or its authorized representatives, with information or opinions held in good faith.

Signed _____

Title _____

Subscribed and sworn to before me this _____ day of _____, 20___

Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

NOTE: Contractor's Statement of Qualifications must be accompanied by: - Only if requested, an audited financial report.



PART 3 – IDENTIFICATION OF PROJECT SUBCONTRACTORS

A complete Pre-qualification statement will include the information below pertaining to the work that will be sub-contracted to others. Each anticipated construction classification should be listed and a firm identified who will perform that work. Substitutions of contractors after submittal of the Statement of Qualifications shall only be take place with the approval of the Owner.

What percentage of Project Work will be sub-contracted as part of this project? ____%

Describe the Project Work elements will be performed by the General Contractor?

List below the sub-contractors identified for this project who will serve on the General Contractor's team.

Classification	Firm
Classification	Firm

Submit the following form for <u>each</u> sub contractor identified as a member of the Respondent's team.



SUB-CONTRACTOR INFORMATION – AFRICAN BURYING GROUND MEMORIAL PARK

General Contractor Name: _____

Construction Classification:

Sub-contractor Name: _____

Description of Firm

Provide responses to each of the following questions, in a non-bound submittal. Do not exceed 4 pages.

- 1. Describe subcontractor's areas of specialization;
- 2. Describe generally the project work that will be performed by subcontractor;
- 3. Provide brief firm history;
- 4. List honors and awards;
- 5. Names of the principal officers of the firm; and
- 6. Key Professionals: Identify the key members of the firm that would be involved in the project and describe their area of expertise and what role they will perform.
- 7. IMPORTANT: include a Project Data Sheet (form found in Part 2) for two projects that required similar work as that proposed for this project.
- 8. IMPORTANT: include a Sub-contractors Prequalification Statement (next page).



General Contractor Name:
Construction Classification:
Sub-contractor Name:

SUB-CONTRACTOR'S QUALIFICATION STATEMENT

The undersigned, on behalf of the Sub-contractor, certifies that the Sub-contractor has not either directly or indirectly entered into any agreement, participated in any collusion, or otherwise taken any action in restraint of free competitive bidding in connection with any contract on any municipal, state, or federal project.

I swear that all the statements herein contained, including the declaration of ownership and organization, the financial information, current workload, and the record of experience have been examined by me, and to the best of my knowledge and belief are true and correct.

On behalf of Sub-contractor, I hereby authorize the City of Portsmouth, or its authorized representatives, to make such investigation, inquiry, checks and tests as the City, in its sole discretion, deems necessary to attempt to ascertain Contractor's qualifications.

On behalf of Sub-contractor, I hereby waive any and all claims, and release and hold harmless any person(s) who provides the City, or its authorized representatives, with information or opinions held in good faith.

Signed _____

Title _____

Subscribed and sworn to before me this _____ day of _____, 200_

Notary Public or Justice of the Peace



PART 4 – AFRICAN BURYING GROUND MEMORIAL PARK PROJECT AREA AND COLORIZED SITE PLAN





Part 4: African Burying Ground Memorial Project Area





For description purposes only

Part 4: Colorized Site Plan



PART 5 – CONSTRUCTION PLAN SET





















A







				LUMINARE SCHEDULE			
SYMBOL	LABEL	MANUF	CATALOG NUMBER	DESCRIPTION		LAMP	WATTS
۵ ۲	۷	WINONA	WABRLED 12V 3024 CHS- F0 STD	RECESSED WALL MOUNTED ACCENTIPATHWAY LIGHT WITH LED LAMP	8	430	3.5
	œ	WINONA	SYBRLED 12V 3024 L3 NAT F0 STD	FLUSH GROUND MOUNTED AIMIBLE UPLIGHT WITH LED LAMP		430	3.5
	υ	WINONA	CHBRLED 3024 12V L3 NAT F0 SHO STD	FLUSH MOUNTED AIMIBLE WELL LIGHT WITH LED LAMP	8	430	3.5
<u>`</u> O•	٥	ANTIQUE STREET LAMP	EHL 16 ST 49LED 350MA 3K GCF MVOLT R3 SF DBL EAC4 WB MOD PE/PER	ARCHITECTURAL LUMMARE WITH DECORTIVE BRACKET AND WITEGRAL PHOTOCELL CONTRAL, MOUNT TO EXISTING UTILITY POLE AT 15 FT ABOVE FINISHED GROUND.	8	6000	12





SPECIFICATIONS

LECTRICAL SPECIFICATIONS

- ART 1 GENERAL
- GENERAL PROVISIONS: DRAWINGS ARE DIAGRAMMATIC AND INDICATE GENERAL ARRAMMENT OF WORK IN CONTRACT. REFER TO ALL DRAWINGS ASSOCIATED WITH THIS PROJECT (EACH TRADE) FOR ENGLY TO ALL EQUIPHENT AND RECURRED MOUNTING FEDERIS.
- 2. SCOPE. FEFORM. WORK AND FROME. Ref. WATERM, AND EQUIPARITI KS. SHOWN ON DAWNES. MAJA SEFORDIA THIS PROVING PTIE SEFEDIATIONS. FORDER JLL COMPORTS AND WATERMS, INFITTRE SEFEDIATIONS. FORDER JLL COMPORTS AND WATERMS, STREPHER SEFEDIATIONS. FOR EXESTANT TO RESERVATION THE RESTORALE SHOWN. THE RESERVATION FOR THE SYSTEM RAMMS IN SHALLO POSTIONAL. THE RESTORATION STRE THE STREPHER MARKING STALLING STREP WIGHT FREE REALILIZER FOR MURLING STREP RESTORAL SHOWN. THE RESTORATION SHALL REFEREMANCING SHALL ROOM REPAIL WIGHT FREE REALILIZER STOR FORMARS. SHALL RESTORATION SHALL ROOMS TO TO STORED STREPS AND STREP. RESTORAL SOFTANG THE RESTORAL INFORMATION SHALL REFEREMANCING SHALL ROOMS AND THE RESTORAL CONTRACTOR RESTORAL SOFTANG THE RESTORAL MISTING SHALL REFEREMANCING SHALL RESTORAL ROOMS AND TO STORED STREP RESTORALES TO THE ROUTING SHALL ROOMS AND THE RESTORAL CONTRACTOR RESTORAL ROOMS AND DEVIDER STREP RESTORAL TO A ROUTING THE RESTORAL MISTING SHALL RE RESTORAL CONTRACTOR RESTORAL ROOMS AND THE RESTORAL CONTRACTOR RESTORAL STALLING THE RESTORAL RESTORATION AND LERER RESTORAL CONTRACTOR RESTORAL RESTORATION AND LERER RESTORAL CONTRACTOR RESTORAL RESTORATION AND RESTORAL RESTORAL CONTRACTOR RESTORAL RESTORATION AND RESTORATION AND RESTORAL RESTORAL ROOMS AND RESTORAL RESTORAL CONTRACTOR RESTORAL RESTORAL RESTORATION AND RESTORAL RESTORAL CONTRACTOR RESTORAL RESTORATION AND RESTORATION RESTORATION AND RESTORAL RESTORAL RESTORATION AND RESTORAL RESTORAL RESTORAL RESTORAL ROOMS AND RESTORAL RESTORAL RESTORAL RESTORAL RESTORAL RESTORAL RESTORAL RESTORATION RESTORATION RESTORATION RESTORAL RESTORAL ROOMS AND RESTORATION RESTORATION RESTORATION RESTORATION RESTORAL RESTORAL RESTORATION RESTOR
- SITE VISIT: VISIT AND CARETULY EXAMINE SITE TO IEDNITY EXSTING CONDITIONS That may freed work of this section before submitting be. No Extra PAYMENT WLL ER ALLONED FOR ADDITIONAL WORK CAREED BY UNHALLINEITY MITH PAYMENT WLL BR ALLONED FOR ADDILITY DISCREDED. CODES, STANDARDS, AUTHORITES AND PERMITS: ALL WORK SHALL BE PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE LATEST EDMIONS OF THE CITY OF PORTSMOUTH
- (e) The second secon
 - REQUEST FOR INFORMATION: RAI ISSUED TO RESOLVE A CONFLICT OR DISCREPANCY SHALL BE PROVIDED WITH THE PREFERRED SOLUTION VA WRITTEN DESCRIPTION OR SKETCH.
- SUBMITTALS. SUBMIT SHOP DRAWINGS OF ALL MATERIAL TO THE LANDSCHE ARCHITET FOR APPROVAL PRORT TO DEREVIELS, DRIAN AND SUBMIT TO THE LUNDSCHPE ARCHITETT ANY REQUESTED SAMPLES, SAMPLES SHALL NOT BE RELINRED TO THE CONTRACTOR OR BULL AND PRACT.
- OPERATION AND MANTENNICE DATA: SUBMIT (2) SETS OF OPERATING AND MANTENNICE JAMALUS MICTIONIC SETSUE DESCRIPTION, MINIC DAGAMES, MICTION MARANITY, RECOMMENDED SPARE PARTS AND ROUTINE MANTENNICE RECURRENTIS WITH RECOMMENDED INTERALS FOR ALL SUPPLIED EQUIPADINT.
- 9. RECORD INVESTIGATION DRAWING THE SEAULT E SHULTE SHULTE SHULTE IN THE COMPETITION OF THE PROJECT SHOWING THE "SE-BUIL" COMPETITION OF THE PROJECT SHOWING THE "SE-BUIL" COMPETITION OF THE PROJECT OF SHOWING THE UNDERSCHE APPROVER THE UNDERSCHE APP AND/OR OTHER USE WILL BE AT THE CONTRACTOR'S SOLE RISK AND WITHOUT LUBBILITY TO THE ARCHITECT AND ENGINEER.

- 10. WHERFAILTES, WHERFAILTERIN IN WEITING FOR ONE YEAR FROM DATE OF OWERS SACEPTINGE TO EXERPINGE TO EXERPINATION EXERPINA, EXEPLACE OF FROME TEREPORATION STREEMINAL TANALISTICUM, MERINALS EXEPLACE OF FROME TEREPORATION STREEMINATION EXERCISA EXERPINATION WARRANTY SHALL INCLUZE A CONTRAFT FEEDON (MARE MAR) 24 HOURS TELEPONDE WARRANTY SHALL ROLLING A CONTRAFT FEEDON (MARE MAR) 24 HOURS TELEPONDE WARRANTY SHALL ROLLING A CONTRAFT FEEDON (MARE MAR) 24 HOURS TELEPONDE WARRANTY SHALL ROLLING A CONTRAFT FEEDON (MARE MAR) TELEPONDE WARRANTY SHALL ROLLING A CONTRAFT FEEDON (MARE MAR) WARRANT SHALL ROLLING A CONTRAFT FEEDON (MARE MAR) TELEPONDE WARRANTY SHALL ROLLING A CONTRAFT FEEDON (MARE MAR) A CONTRAFT VARIANTY SHALL ROLLING A CONTRAFT FEEDON (MARE MAR) A CONTRAFT VARIANTY SHALL ROLLING A CONTRAFT FEEDON (MARE MAR) TELEPONDE WARRANTY SHALL ROLLING A CONTRAFT FEEDON (MARE MAR) TELEPONDE WARRANTY SHALL ROLLING A CONTRAFT FEEDON (MARE MAR) A CONTRAFT VARIANTY SHALL ROLLING A CONTRAFT FEEDON (MARE MAR) A CONTRAFT VARIANTY SHALL ROLLING A CONTRAFT FEEDON (MARE MAR) A CONTRAFT VARIANTY SHALL ROLLING A CONTRAFT FEEDON (MARE MAR) A CONTRAFT VARIANTY SHALL ROLLING A CONTRAFT FEEDON (MARE MAR) A CONTRAFT FEEDON (MAR) A CONTRAFT FEEDON (MARE MAR) A CONTRAFT FEEDON (MAR) A CONTRAFT FEEDON (MARE MAR) A CONTRAFT FEEDON (MARE MAR) A CONTRAFT FEEDON (MAR) A CONTRAFT FEEDON (MAR) A CONTRAFT FEEDON (MARE MAR) A CONTRAFT FEEDON (MARE
- 11. COORDIMATOR: COMPER WITH ALL DIMER TRADES RELATIVE TO LOCATION OF ALL PHANICAS SID COMMENT TO BE REMALLED AND SITE LICENTIONS SO AS NOT TO COMPLICT WITH OR HADDRESS OF WAYS OF OTHER SECTIONS. WAR REVAILED THAT CAREFURST FOR PRODIESS OF AND STATES ACCESS REQUIRED BY CODE REVAILED THAT CAREFURST CON RESENCES ACCESS REQUIRED BY CODE ADDITIONAL COST TO THE OWNER.
 - 12. CUTTING AND PATCHING: INCLUDE ALL CORING, CUTTING AND PATCHING NECESSARY FOR THE EXECUTION OF THE WORK OF THIS SECTION.
- T. STRETT PERCURDING: LIFE SAFET MAIL CONTRY MILLING AND CONDENTRY OF THE SAFET PERCURDING: LIFE SAFET MAIL CONSTRUCTION SHALL ER A RIMMER AND COSMERTION FROM OF THE SAFET PERCURDING FROM OF THE SAFET PERCURDING PERCURDING FROM OF THE SAFET PERCURDING PERCURDIN
- - PART 2 PRODUCTS
 - I. RACENNYS AND CONDUT: RACENNYS EXPOSED TO THE WEATHER OR RACENNYS THAT ARE DRIED BURAL SHALL BE LOUID THAT WITH ASSOCIATED LOUID THAT FITTINGS, RACENNYS SHALL BE 3/4" TRUE SIZE UNESS LARGEN SIZES ARE NOTED ON THE DRAWNINS.
- WIE AND CABLE. ALL CONDUCTORS SHALL BE THE THHA/THIM OR XHHM, COPPER, DRID 75/95/06. YOU TINGLIDONI UNLESS OFTERWISE NOTE: MINIMUM SIZE CONDUCTOR SHALL BE \$172 MIN COPPER. CONDUCTORS \$1/0 MIC AND UNRERE SHALL BE FORDED WITH XHALL BE SUBLID. BOOK DRIVEN OR SIZEN IN ACCORDANCE WITH HE CHAEL ES CULU. GAP ERMONCIONE SALLE ON ACCORDANCE WITH HE CHAEL SOLUTION CONDUCTORS SIZEN IN ACCORDANCE WITH HE CHAEL SOLUTION COLOR CONDIC SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH HE CHAEL SOLUTION COLOR CONDIC SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH HE CHAEL SOLUTION COLOR CONDIC SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH HE CHAEL SOLUTION COLOR CONDIC SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH HE CHAEL SOLUTION COLOR CONDIC SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH HE CHAEL SOLUTION COLOR CONDIC SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH HE CHAEL SOLUTION COLOR CONDIC SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH HE CHAEL SOLUTION COLOR CONDIC SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH HE CHAEL SOLUTION COLOR CONDIC SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH HE CHAEL SOLUTION COLOR CONDIC SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH HE CHAEL SOLUTION COLOR CONDICION SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH HE CHAEL SOLUTION COLOR CONDIC SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH HE CHAEL SOLUTION COLOR CONDIC SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH HE CHAEL SOLUTION COLOR CONDICION SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH HE CHAEL SOLUTION CONDUCTORS INSTALLED IN PROJECTION CONTROL STATICLE PROJECTION CONDUCTORS INSTALLED IN PROJECTION CONTROL STATICLE PROVECTION CONDUCTORS INSTALLED IN PROJECTION CONTROL STATICLE PROJECTION CONDUCTORS INSTALLED IN PROJECTION CONTROL STATICLE PROVECTION CONDUCTORS INSTALLED IN PROJECTION CONTROL STATICLE PROVECTION CONDUCTORS INSTALLED IN PROJECTION CONTROL STATICLE PROVECTION CONDUCTORS INSTALLED IN PROVECTION CONTROL STATICLE PROVECTION CONDUCTORS INSTALLED IN PROVECTION CONTROL STATICLE PROVECTION CONDUCTORS INSTALLED IN PROVECTION

 - The many sector process provide a fear with stream of the matrix point and many sector provide the matrix point and meteroper recorders to prolificate the constraints, but both and where the constraint of the constraint of the matrix point and the sector provided the constraint and the sector provided the sector provided the constraint points and the sector provided the sector provided the sector provided the sector provided the sector point and the sector point and the sector point and the sector provided the sector point and t

- TRANSTRAUGS FOR LOW VOLAGE LURING SSTEM SIALL RE, WINOW LURING WORTD M. STANLESS STELE PROCESSIES, LLI STEP FOR OUTDON WET WORTD M. STANLESS STELE PROCESSIES, LLI STEP FOR OUTDON WET SCORDAN REST DEBARL INSORGENCE PRAVIET SALL FOR VOLTO M FOR SCORDAN REST, PROCEDING PRAVIES ALL FOR VOLTO M FOR SCORDAN REST, PLANSTRAVEN PRAVIES ALL RE TO VILLS AND THE SCORDAN REST, PLANSTRAVEN REVIEWED FOR TO PLANST MARKETIRE: THE PLANSTRAVEN REVIEWED FOR TO PLANST N THE X-FOULT TRANSTRAVEN REVIEWED FOR TO PLANSTRAVENCE.
 - Concentration methods with a second on the incomposition of the concentration of the concentration of the second on the secon
- 6. EQUIPART RECOMMENT, ALL EPPERD, MONAL CHERFER, CANALOTINE REFORM, CONDUCTRE MITER, MOLCARNE CLIFFICAL, CONVERTOR FOR FORMARE, PARTINE RE COUNTREE POCKNIME CLIFFICAL, CONVERTOR FOR FORMARE, PARTINE ELUIPARTO FERRIME ON THE 120 VOLT SMOT STERILS STERS FORMARE CONTRUCTOR SHALL ER IN ACCORDING TIMIT PARE. SSILLS STER FORMARE CONTRUCTOR SHALL ER IN ACCORDING TIMIT PARE. SSILLS STER FORMARE CONTRUCTOR SHALL ER IN ACCORDING TIMIT PARE. SSILLS STER FORMARE CONTRUCTOR SHALL ER IN ACCORDING TIMIT PARE. SSILLS STER FORMARE CONTRUCTOR SHALL ER IN ACCORDING TO THE PARE FORMARE CONTORING SHALL RELETING CORE CONTORNET ON TO THE SSILLS STER. STER FORMARE TO THE RECORDER CONTORNET ON THE SSILLS STER. STER FORMARE FORMARING TO THE PARE MILE STERILS STER FORMARE CONTORNET FOR FORMARIA TO MONETCIDI TO THE SCINCE FORMARE CONTOURCE FOR FOR FORMARIA THE SSILLS STER FORMARE CONTOURCE FOR FOR FORMARIA TO THE SSILLS STER FORMARE CONTOURCE FOR FOR FORMARIA TO THE SSILLE SSILL FORMARIA CONTOURCE FOR FORMARIA TO THE SSILLS STERE FORMARIA CONTOURCE FOR FORMARIA TO THE SSILLS STERE FORMARIA CONTOURCE FOR FORMARIA TO THE SSILLS STERE FORMARIA FORMARIA CONTOURCE WALL BE SSILLE SSILLS FORMARIA FORMARIA CONTORNET SPACE FOR FORMER FOR FORMARIA FOR FORMARIA FORMARI
 - Liomike Frontess: Shull Be Key, Fraksheb Cowheter with A Full communer of this Luber Sterefor Isolation. In Mic Process And StepEnED Applicationalistic Strational sociation. In Mic Process And StepEnED Applicational Sciences Institution A and Distal Statistical Automatives Automatic Statistical Statistics and Lubershef Automatic Statistics of Lubershef Sciences and StepEnED Automatic Statistics of Lubershef Sciences and Statistics Automatic Automatics and Lubershef Sciences and Statistics and Statistics and Statistics and Automatics and Research and Statistics Statistics and Statistics and Automatics and Statistics Statistics and Statistics and Automatics and Statistics and Statistics and Automatics and Michael Defined Endlines On Michael Statistics and Automatic Statistics and Automatics and Automatics Automatics and Automatics and Automatics and Automatics and Statistics and Automatics and Automatics and Contections Statistics and Automatics and Automatics and automatics and Automatics and Automatics and Automatics and contections Statistics and Automatics and Automa

PART 3 EXECUTION

- THE ELECTRICAL CONTRACTOR SHALL FURNER AND INSTALL ALL UNHTIME FRUTHERS. LIVES EXEMPRICIP. DOERS, RACKINGS NOR WINNIN INDICATED ON THE DRAWINSS OR SPECHED HEERIN IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE BEST FRACTICIES OF THE TRADE TO THE COMPLETE SUTSTACTION OF THE DRAWERS.
- The ELECTRICAL CONTRACTOR SHALL RETER TO LANDSCAPE DRAMNES AND LANDSCAPE RAPHTER. FOR EXACT LOCATION OF EQUIPMENT. AQUIST LOCATIONS AND MONTIME HEART TO ROLA-LM.
 LOCATIONS FROM TO ROLA-LM.
- 3. THE ELECTRICAL CONTRACTOR SHALL FULLY COORDINATE WORK WITH OTHER TRADES. 4. AFTER INSTALLATION ALL ELECTRICAL EQUIPMENT SHALL BE PROTECTED FROM DAMAGE DURING THE CONSTRUCTION PERIOD.

 - 5. DURING THE CONFER OF THE CONFIRENCIAN THE ELECTRICUL CONTRACTOR SMLL MARC-UP AS TO THE ELECTRICUL UNMAINS TO PETELLA CHANGES IN LOCATION OF ELECTRICUL UNMAINS TO PETELLA CHANGES AND LIAL AND LIANCIAN ELECTRICUL OF ELECTRICUL UNMAINS TO PELLU PER UNIVERSE AND LIAL AND LIANCIAN POLASE BY DIADESIONE FOR ALL BRIED THANSTORES AND PILL AND LIANCIAN POLASE BY DIADESIONE FOR ALL 2 FORD PORTS: THESE MARC-UP PORTANCES BY DIADESIONE FOR ALL AND SMLL BE INCLUDED IN THE O & M MANULS. THE AS-BULL DRAMMES AND SHLL BE INCLUDED IN THE O & M MANULS.



bnuovd gniyvua nasivly

Portsmonth weW, Atnomstroq suoi1pɔ1fiɔədS Zui1qZi7

2013-04-29 RW' VB. WS/ C-PU-000C hecked By: Drawn By: cale:



Sheet 7.A of 15













